
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

West De Pere District Office-400 Reid St. Suite, W 
January 15, 2024 

5:30 p.m. 
I. Call meeting to order

II. Pledge of Allegiance

III. Consider approval of the agenda

IV. Recognition of District Students and Staff

V. Open meeting to floor for fifteen minutes to enable district residents to bring items of general concern 
to the attention of the Board

VI. Consider approval of the minutes of the December 13, 2023 regular and annual meetings

VII. Consider approval of the Treasurer's Report

VIII. Consider previously paid bills as presented for payment approval

IX. Old Business
A. Consider adoption of the following as previously presented:

• 1700 School District Records Retentions
• 8100 Board of Education (reviewed-no changes)
• 8130 Board Committees (reviewed-no changes)
• 8211 Resignations (reviewed-no changes)

X. New Business
A. Finance Committee Report

B. Curriculum and Policy Committee Report and First Readings
• 2111 Superintendent
• 5128 Academic Integrity (new policy)

C. Consider Pupil Nondiscrimination Self-Evaluation Report

D. Consider Foreign Exchange Students for the 2024-2025 School Year

E. Consider Determination of Regular and Special Education Open Enrollment Spaces as Required

F. Strategic Monitoring Report

G. Consider Clerk for School Board Elections

H. Consider WASB Resolutions

I. Board of Education Evalution Preparation

J. Superintendent Update 



K. Consider Staffing Items

XI. Reports and Communication

XII. Consider adjourning into closed session as provided under Section 19.85 (1)(c) Wisconsin Statutes for
the purpose of personnel issues.  Further take notice that pursuant to Section 19.85(2) the Board may
reconvene in regular session to consider matters discussed in closed session and other matters on the
agenda.

XIII. Reconvene into open session

XIV. Consider matters discussed in closed session

XV. Adjourn meeting

NOTICE 
The School District of West De Pere Board meeting will be available in person and via Zoom. 

If you have any need for special accommodations related to accessing the meeting, please contact Stacy Schaetz at  920-337-1393 x8025. 
Join Zoom Meeting:  https://zoom.us/j/97231776768?pwd=bkdrdEhpSndHdnY5L3lTRWtxMUUydz09 

By Phone:  312-626-6799  Meeting Id: 97231776768 Passcode: 126747 



 

 

      SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 
December 13, 2023 

5:30 PM 
 

Board members present: Fuss, Borley, Van Den Heuvel, Dorn, Van Deurzen 
Board members excused: None 
  
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 PM by Board President Fuss followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. President Fuss stated that the area news media had been notified of the meeting as 
required by open meeting law and state statutes.  

It was moved by Barbara Van Deurzen and seconded by Scott Borley to accept the agenda.  
Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0    Motion carried. 
 

The Board recognized the following groups and individuals;  
 

High School One Act 
They walked away from the state competition with a Critic’s Choice award, Ensemble award, 
Technical Theatre award, Stage Crew award, 3 Solo Acting Awards, and the Director's Award 

High School Swim Team Competed at State  
WDP swimmers, Kate Schmoll, Faith Kibbe, and Erika Ukkola 

 100 Butterfly Kate Schmoll,  
 200 Medley Relay Kate Schmoll, Faith Kibbe, Alternate - Erika Ukkola   
 200 Free Relay Kate Schmoll, Faith Kibbe, Alternate - Erika Ukkola 

Intermediate/Middle School Compliment Club 
The purpose of the club is to find unique ways to compliment Intermediate/Middle School students 
and help them start their day off in a positive way. The students write compliments and put them 
on students lockers. Dr. Kohl is the advisor 

The Board thanked everyone for making West De Pere proud. 
 

The meeting was opened to the floor to enable district residents to bring items of general concern 
to the attention of the Board. No concerns were presented. 
 

It was moved by Barbara Van Deurzen and seconded by Scott Borley that the November 17, 2023 
regular meeting minutes be approved as presented. Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0   Motion carried. 
 

It was moved by Scott Borley and seconded by Ryan Van Den Heuvel that the Treasurer's Report be 
approved.  Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0     Motion carried. 
 

It was moved by Barbara Van Deurzen and seconded by Scott Borley that previously paid bills to 
Vos Electric, VDH Electric, and Best Built be approved.  Motion carried. Voting Yes:  4 Voting 
No: 0   Ryan Van Den Heuvel abstained. Motion carried. 
 

It was moved by Ryan Van Den Heuvel and seconded by Scott Borley that previously paid bills be 
approved excluding bills from Vos Electric, VDH Electric, and Best Built.  Voting Yes:  5 Voting 
No: 0    Motion carried.  
 

Old Business 
It was moved by Ryan Van Den Heuvel and seconded by Scott Borley to adopt the following 
policies as previously presented:  

 2400 Emergency Decisions 
 2420 Line of Responsibility (reviewed-no changes) 
 2440 Administrative Leeway in Absence of Board Policy (reviewed-no changes) 



 

 

 4230 Secretary – Elementary School 
 6153 Students and Community Service 

Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0       Motion carried.                                                
New Business 
Committee Chair, Scott Borley gave a verbal update regarding the Finance Committee Meeting.  
 

Committee Chair, Barbara Van Deurzen reviewed the December 7, 2023 Curriculum and Policy 
Committee report. 
 

The Library Media Specialist Team, presented to the Board an update on AI (artificial intelligence) 
and how it will affect the district. The Board thanked them for the information.  
 

Joseph Feldhausen, Teaching and Learning Coordinator, presented the State Accountability 
Reports. The Board thanked him for the information.  
 

Amy Schuh and Chris Ditzman of the Student Services Department, reviewed with the Board the 
Pupil Nondiscrimination Self-Evaluation Report. Discussion ensued. They will be seeking 
approval of the report at the Board’s January meeting. 
 

It was moved by Ryan Van Den Heuvel and seconded by Scott Borley to approve the Annual 
School Safety Reports per Section 118.074 (4)(cp) as presented.  Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0    
Motion carried.  
 

President Jenni Fuss, gave an update on the search for the new Superintendent. The School District 
of West De Pere Board of Education is in the process of establishing an Advisory Committee to 
participate in interviewing candidates and providing input to the Board for the position of 
Superintendent of West De Pere Schools. 
 

Advisory Committee participants will be selected proportionately and randomly from interested 
members of the following groups: Parents of current or former students, other interested members 
of the community, and staff members who work in the School District of West De Pere, or others 
the Board deems important to participate.  
 

If you are interested in serving on the advisory committee, please submit your name and contact 
information to the board’s administrative assistant, Stacy Schaetz at 920-337-1393 x 8025 or email 
sschaetz@wdpsd.com to express interest. 
 

It was moved by Scott Borley and seconded by Barbara Van Deurzen to approve staffing items as 
presented.  Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0    Motion carried.  
 

The Board was presented with various reports and communications:  such as updates, various 
thank you’s, invitations, and calendar items. Discussion Followed. 
 

It was moved by Barbara Van Deurzen and seconded by Scott Borley at 6:58 PM that the Board 
adjourn into closed session as previously stated. Voting Yes:  5 Voting No: 0  Motion carried. 
 

The Board reconvened at 8:32 PM. 
 

It was moved by Scott Borley and seconded by Ryan Van Den Heuvel at 8:33 PM that the meeting be 
adjourned. Voting Yes: 5 Voting No: 0 Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 

Barbara Van Deurzen 
Clerk 



�����������	
��	������	����
� �����������������	
��	�
��
���
	�	����������������������������� �����!������"���#����� �$����"��%�#������&�����'&� ����(������!�����%)������*���#&��+��#&�,%*+-�!������"���#����.�'�#���*���#&��!���&)���,!".*!-�����#�/�'���������#�0�&��������"���#�1�'��� �%)������'��#)����'�,"%�-��'&�%)�����*���#&��+��#&�,%*+-2��!������"���#����*���#&��*���'���'�!���&)���,!"**!-�����#���#���&��'&�1��'���'�&���������"���#�1�'��� �%)������'��#)����'2��3&&����'����4�����#���#&��'����&&#����&��'�����5657�.�'�#���*���#&��!���&)���,.*!-�1)�������1��'���'�&� �#���0�'�,8-����#�4��9����� �#��)����#���#&��(�����(�������#����'�&���'�����'��(����������������)����#���#&����(2��:���!)��#�'��'&�'���������#�0�&����1�������'&��)##�'���������� �����!"��*��.��*!�����������&1�'���#���0���  ����(����'�����&���#���2�3&1�'���#���#���'&�����#����#��#��������  ������������#��'�&��'&�)�&���&��'���#�/)��#������� �#��#���#��1���1�'�����'2��$���������!)��#�'��'&�'�����)���1������#����'������ �#��#���#�#���#&�;����'/��'�����&���#���4��)����&)�����1������&���/���&�������  ����&��1�&����#��#��������<���&���#�����'���'&�&)����2��=>.3=�*>?>*>@A>!B� �>".3*4�$���!���)����!�����'��CD4�CE4�FF4�GE4�CCH��A*I!!�*>?>*>@A>!B� �GC56�J�!�)&�'��*���#&��$����'��'�*���#&��*���'���'��!���&)��J$��"%���3"I%:>"B�HKCGKEC��*>L�>$>"�C5K56KCC�



�����������	
��	������	����
� ����������
���������	�������������������� �!�"#�$%�&�%'�$���(�)�((*�#�&'$%$"$����"$���%$*� ���$���+�&�)�+�&$��&��%&�$����,%'$�%#$�#�&$��(�� �$���'#���('��-$�%'�$����"$*��&����'.�&'%/%(%$*�� �$���������$��.��0%������.��)��+�� ���"#�$%�&� ���$���.��.(��� �$���,%'$�%#$�������-&�#���*%&)��"$�$�%'���'.�&'%/%(%$*1�$���������'��((����.$�.�(%#%�'� ���$���+�&�)�+�&$��&���#�&$��(�� �$���'#���(�'*'$�+��&���2��#%'��(�)%'(�$%0���&��3"�%#%�(� "&#$%�&'���4���-$�%'�.�(%#*��&��"&���'$�&�%&)�� �$���������� �!�"#�$%�&�$���(�5'�� �6%'#�&'%&��''%)&��.�5��'��&���"$%�'�78�#��9:;�9:��&��9:;�9<=�$��$����������'���5��(����'��&�%&�%0%�"�(1����������+�+/�����'�&���"$���%$*�$��'.��>�����#$� ���$���������"&(�''�'.�#% %#�((*���"$���%?���$�����'�����,@A�!,B�CDEDFC�



�����������	
��	������	����
� ����������
�������		������������������� �!�"��#��"$�%&��'�$"&��(# ���"���)�'�*"+'$%�$%!)��%��#�� $�$%����,��-�"���*���$""��&.����&��������/$&���)���,�/��)��%����/��%��#�,���"��"�-���*"$�%�,��"&��/��)����"���*���$"�"�������������$&"�$*"�"���%��*�0�&���'��*"$�%)��(*�#"��&�&#�*$'$*�  ���$��*"���1��"��������.��2"�&��  �1��"����0"���'�"���#��&$��%"��'�"���������"���##�$%"��  �*���$""��&)��%��%��%%0� �1�&$&)���(*�#"�,��%�"���������$"&� '�������*$����"���,$&�.��3�*��*���$""���&��  ���/����*��$�#��&�%��&� �*"���1��"���������4��&$��%".�2"�&��  �1��"����0"���'�"���*��$�#��&�%�"��!$/��#01 $*�%�"$*���%���*�%/�%��"���*���$""��)��%��$%�"���*��$�#��&�%5&��1&�%*�����$%�1$ $"��"���*")�"���&�*�%��%������&��  ���# �*���%��#��'����"����0"$�&��'�"����''$*�.��6  �������*���$""��&�&��  ��������"��"����#�%����"$%!� �,��%��#�&"����"$%!��!�%���,$"��#��#����%�"$*�.�7���$""��&�,$  �!�%���  ���#���"��$%��#�%�&�&&$�%)�10"�����*�%/�%��$%�* �&���&�&&$�%��&��#��&*�$1���1��&"�"0"�.��6894�38:�;;<;=<>>�



�����������	
��	������	����
� �������
�����	������������������������ ��!�"��#$�%�%"�#��� �!!�"��%�$�����&#��������$�� �!!�"���$$#����$���$��$�!�'�#�$����� ��"��#$��!�#()�*��� �!!���(������������� ����%����$�����$����� ��&#������#����������)�*��������%�������$�����$+����� �!!�� ���"���%���������'��,-���$�!�'�#.����� ��#����������)��/012/��030�04506��7�������89):8;8<=+�>���������7���,�����2?@AB0?6�CD8CD9E���0F*70?6�88D8CDG:�



 
 
 

                                 SCHOOL DISTRICT OF WEST DE PERE 
CURRICULUM and POLICY MEETING 

West De Pere District Office-400 Reid St, Suite W 
January 11, 2024 

7:30 a.m. 
 
 
 

 I. Call meeting to order- 7:30 a.m. 
 
 

 II. Curriculum items  - none were discussed 
 
 
 III. Review the following for Board adoption:  

 1700 School District Records Retention  
 8100 Board of Education (reviewed-no changes) 
 8130 Board Committees (reviewed-no changes) 
 8211 Resignations (reviewed-no changes) 

 

    Reviewed for Adoption on 1/15/2024   

 IV. Review the following: 

  First Reads: 

 2111 Superintendent 
 5128 Academic Honesty (new policy) 

  Committee discussed recommended revisions   Present for First Reading on 1/15/2024 
 

  V. Next meeting date:  February 8, 2024 
 

 
VI. Adjourn meeting-7:33 a.m. 



�����������	
��	������	����
� ����������
��	���	�������������������� ��!"#$�%&&$�$'&�(&)"*(&%&+$#�,#�&#$,-.*#'&/��-0�$'&�1*#23+#*+�4&5,($%&+$�36��7"-.*2��+#$("2$*3+�,+/�,+0�3$'&(�)",.*6*2,$*3+#�,#�%,0�-&�#5&2*6*&/�-0�$'&��83,(/�36�9/"2,$*3+ ��: ��73##&##�,+/�/&%3+#$(,$&�#$(3+;�*+$&(5&(#3+,.�23%%"+*2,$*3+�#<*..#�,+/�5(3=&2$��,�53#*$*>&�,+/�23"($&3"#�,$$*$"/&�,+/�*%,;&�$3�$'&�#$,66?�#$"/&+$#?�,+/��23%%"+*$0 ��@97�@��������83,(/�36�9/"2,$*3+��A�8�B�������3�5(3>*/&�.&,/&(#'*5�*+�/&>&.35*+;�,+/�%,*+$,*+*+;�$'&�-&#$�53##*-.&��&/"2,$*3+,.�5(3;(,%#�,+/�#&(>*2&#�C*$'�$'&�(&#3"(2&#�,>,*.,-.& ��79@��@!���9�@9�7����8�����9����� ��7(3=&2$�,�53#*$*>&�,+/�23"($&3"#�,$$*$"/&�,+/�*%,;&�$3�$'&�#$,66?�#$"/&+$#?�,+/��23%%"+*$0 ��: � �73##&##�,+/�/&%3+#$(,$&�#$(3+;�*+$&(5&(#3+,.��23%%"+*2,$*3+�#<*..# ��D ���$$&+/�,+/�5,($*2*5,$&�*+�,..�%&&$*+;#�36�$'&�83,(/�,+/�*$#�23%%*$$&&#?��&E2&5$�C'&+�3C+�&%5.30%&+$�3(�#,.,(0�*#�"+/&(�23+#*/&(,$*3+ ��F ���&(>&�,#�&EG366*2*3�%&%-&(�36�23%%*$$&&# ��H ���/%*+*#$&(�,#�2'*&6�#2'33.�&E&2"$*>&?�$'&�/&>&.35%&+$�,+/�%,*+$&+,+2&�36�,��53#*$*>&�&/"2,$*3+,.�5(3;(,%�/&#*;+&/�$3�%&&$�$'&�+&&/#�36�$'&�23%%"+*$0�,+/��$3�2,((0�3"$�$'&�53.*2*&#�36�$'&�83,(/ ��I ���/>*#&�$'&�83,(/�3+�$'&�+&&/�63(�+&C�3(�(&>*#&/�53.*2*&#�,+/�#&&�$',$�,..��53.*2*&#�36�$'&�83,(/�,(&�*%5.&%&+$&/ ��J ��7(&5,(&�,+/�#"-%*$�(&23%%&+/,$*3+#�$3�$'&�83,(/�*+2."/*+;�'&.56".�6,2$#?��*+63(%,$*3+?�,+/�(&53($#�(&.,$*>&�$3�,..�%,$$&(#�(&)"*(*+;�83,(/�,2$*3+ ��K ���+�2,#&#�C'&(&�*$�*#�*%5(,2$*2,.�$3�%&&$�C*$'�$'&�83,(/?�,2$�3+�3C+��/*#2(&$*3+�*+�,+0�%,$$&(#�+3$�23>&(&/�-0�83,(/�53.*20?�(&53($�#"2'�,2$*3+��$3�$'&�83,(/�,#�#33+�,#�5(,2$*2,-.&?�,+/�(&23%%&+/�53.*20�*+�3(/&(�$3��5(3>*/&�;"*/,+2&�*+�$'&�6"$"(& ��L ��@&53($�$3�$'&�83,(/�#"2'�%,$$&(#�,#�/&&%&/�%,$&(*,.�$3�$'&��"+/&(#$,+/*+;�,+/�5(35&(�%,+,;&%&+$�36�$'&�#2'33.#?�3(�,#�$'&�83,(/��%,0�(&)"&#$ �



�����������	
��	������	����
� �����������������
��	���	����������� !"#��$%���&&�'$"!��'(  )"*+�,�$�,&�#$($���(*-�&�-� (.�.(/#0�#$($��(*-�&�-� (.�� �+�.($",*#0�(*-�1,( -��,."'"�#��������2(3��(..�(-4"*"#$ ($"!��-�'"#",*#�*�'�##( )�$,�$%��� ,�� �&�*'$"��,*��"*+��,&�$%���#'%,,.�-"#$ "'$����5���67� '"#���,/� �$,�4(3�� �.�#�(*-�� ,!"-��"*#$ �'$",*��$,�#'%,,.��4�.,)��#�(*-��#$�-�*$#�(#�4()�8��*�'�##( )�$,�"4�.�4�*$�1,( -��,."')����9���:,*-�'$�(��� ",-"'�(�-"$�,&�$%��$,$(.�#'%,,.��� ,+ (4�(*-�(-!"#��$%��1,( -�,*�� �',44�*-($",*#�&, �$%���-�'($",*(.�(-!(*'�4�*$�,&�$%��#'%,,.#����;���<�',44�*-�$,�$%��1,( -�&, �"$#�(-,�$",*�,&�(..��',� #�#�,&�#$�-)0�'�  "'�.�4��+�"-�#0�(*-�4(=, �'%(*+�#�"*�$�7$#�(*-�$"4��#'%�-�.�#�$,�8���#�-�"*�$%���#'%,,.#����>����$�-)�(*-� �!"#�0�$,+�$%� �/"$%�#$(&&0�(..�'�  "'�.�4��+�"-�#�(*-��',� #�#�,&�#$�-)�,*�(�',*$"*�"*+�8(#"#����?����$�-)�(*-� �!"#�0�$,+�$%� �/"$%�(-4"*"#$ ($",*0�(**�(.��#$ ($�+"'��8�".-"*+��+,(.#����@���:,44�*"'($��$,��4�.,)��#0�-" �'$.)�, �$% ,�+%��-�.�+($",*0�(..�('$",*#�,&�$%���1,( -� �.�!(*$�$,��4�.,)��#�(*-� �'�"!��& ,4��4�.,)��#�(..�',44�*"'($",*#�$,��8��(-- �##�-�8)�$%��1,( -����A���B##"#$�$%��1,( -�"*�$%��-�!�.,�4�*$�,&�#(.( )��#'%�-�.�#�&, �(..��� ,&�##",*(.�(*-�*,*� ,&�##",*(.��� #,**�.����C���64�.,)��� #,**�.�(#�*�'�##( )0�/"$%"*�$%��."4"$#��,&�8�-+�$( )�� ,!"#",*#�(*-��#�8=�'$�$,�$%��1,( -D#�(�� ,!(.���5����B##"+*�(*-�$ (*#&� ��4�.,)��#�(#�$%��"*$� �#$��,&�$%��-"#$ "'$�4()�-"'$($�0��(*-� ��, $�#�'%�('$",*�$,�$%��1,( -�&, �"*&, 4($",*�(*-� �', -���5�������� !"#��4�$%,-#�,&�"*#$ �'$",*0�#��� !"#",*0��(*-�(-4"*"#$ ($",*�"*�$%��#'%,,.#���55�����#��*-�(*)��4�.,)���&, �=�#$�'(�#��(*-� ��, $�#�'%�#�#��*#",*�$,�$%���1,( -�($�$%��*�7$�4��$"*+�&, �&"*(.�('$",*���59���<��, $�$,�$%��1,( -�$%��'(#��,&�(*)��4�.,)���/%,#��#� !"'��"#���*#($"#&('$, )�(*-� �',44�*-�(�� ,� "($��('$",*���5;���E" �'$�$%��� ��( ($",*�,&�$%��(**�(.�8�-+�$��&, �(-,�$",*�8)�$%��1,( -�(*-��(-4"*"#$� �$%��8�-+�$��*('$�-�8)�$%��1,( -�"*�('', -(*'��/"$%�.�+(.�� �F�" �4�*$#�(*-�(-,�$�-�1,( -��,."'"�#��



�����������	
��	������	����
� �����������������
��	���	����������� !"�#��$%�&�"$��"$�'()*+%,(+���$%�*)$�()!��-)(��!!�+.'+$%"�,(+��)-���*#))!�-,$%��"$��**)(%�$*+�/"�#��#+��%)'�+%� ,%0+�1��, 2+*���)��''()3�!��)-��#+�4)�(%����5���6�"$��"$�%"(+*�!7�)(��#(),0#�%+!+0��")$�'+(�)$$+!�(+*)(%�1� ,�"$+����(+*)(%�1��$%�)�#+(�(+*)(%��/#"*#��(+�(+8,"(+%� 7�!�/��$%�4)�(%�')!"*7����9���:"!+1�)(�*�,�+��)� +�-"!+%1��!!�(+8,"(+%�����+���$%�-+%+(�!�(+')(������;���<��+$%1�)(�%+!+0��+���(+'(+�+$���"3+��)����+$%1���,*#�&++�"$0��)-�&,$"*"'�!���0+$*"+��/#+(+�&���+(��'+(��"$"$0��)��#+�', !"*��*#))!���''+�(�)$��#+���0+$%��)(��(+�+.'+*�+%��)� +�(�"�+%����=���>+'(+�+$���#+�4)�(%����!"�"�)$� +�/++$��#+��*#))!��%"��("*���$%��#+�*)&&,$"�7���?@���<��+$%�*)$3+$�")$���$%�*)$-+(+$*+�����$+*+���(7���)�A++'�� (+����)-�!��+����+%,*��")$�!��(+$%����?B������� !"�#��$%�&�"$��"$���'()0(�&�)-�', !"*�(+!��")$����)�A++'��#+�', !"*��/+!!C"$-)(&+%�)-��#+��*�"3"�"+���$%�$++%��)-��#+��*#))!�%"��("*�1��--+*�"$0����/#)!+�)&+��$%�*))'+(��"3+�/)(A"$0�(+!��")$�#"'� +�/++$��#+��*#))!���$%��#+��*)&&,$"�7���?����D)$-+(�'+(")%"*�!!7�/"�#�'()-+��")$�!��$%�!�7��0(),'��*)$*+($"$0��#+��*#))!��'()0(�&���$%��(�$�&"���)��#+�4)�(%��,00+��")$��0�"$+%�-()&��,*#��*)$-+(+$*+����??���E+!+0��+��)�)�#+(�+&'!)7++���$7�')/+(��)(��$7�%,�"+��/"�#��#+�A$)/!+%0+��#�����#+�%+!+0��")$�)-�')/+(�)(�%,�7�%)+��$)��(+!"+3+��#+�F,'+("$�+$%+$��)-�-"$�!��(+�')$�" "!"�7�-)(��#+��*�")$���A+$�,$%+(��,*#�%+!+0��")$���?G����$0�0+�"$�)�#+(��*�")$�����%++&+%��''()'("��+� 7��#+�4)�(%���H�>6F�I:��6JKIL6�MHN��B��&)$�#����7+�(���F�!�(71� +$+-"��1��$%��+(&��)-��#+�*)$�(�*����)� +��$$,�!!7�%+�+(&"$+%� 7��#+�4)�(%�)-��%,*��")$����O<KP<HQIMN�H#+�F,'+("$�+$%+$�R��2) �'+(-)(&�$*+�/"!!� +�-)(&�!!7�+3�!,��+%1�"$��/("�"$01���$$,�!!7� 7��#+�4)�(%���<EIJH�EN�GSB;S5;��>�OQF�EN�GS��S;�1�5SB5S;;1�BBSB=S=;1��SB=S@?1��S�@SB?1��S�@SB=1�?SBBSB=�



�����������	
��	������	����
� �����������������	�
�	��������������� !"# �"��$�%�!"����&�#��'(�)�!���*�!"+�(*,��-.��"!� *"�/# "+� *�"���� !"# �"0!��!"),�*"!1�2 ��(" */�(�(,�3 ����*�!"+��#�,�!�"���"#)!"�4�"5��*�"�(���#!�(*,�!"),�*"!�(!�5����(!����3.#�3 !�!�"���(�(,�3 ��!"(*, */��$��"��#�!"),�*"!1����"�("��(���!"),�*"� !�6),/�,�!����+��*��"�� #�3�# "!7�"���� !"# �"�.#�� 4 "!�(*+�!"),�*"�$#�3�.#�!�*" */�!�3��*����!�0!�5�#8�(!�"�� #��5*7��)! */�(#" $ � (�� *"��� /�*���.�("$�#3!� *�.�(����$��*�0!��5*�5�#87�.#�' , */�)*()"��# 9�,��(!! !"(*���"��(*�"��#�!"),�*"7�(*,����(" */� *�(��� "!�$�#3!1��:���!������5�#8�!)43 ""�,�$�#�"���.)#.�!���$�3��" */���)#!��#�;) #�3�*"!�3)!"�4��"��� *, ' ,)(���!"),�*"0!��# / *(��5�#81��<"� !�.#�� 4 "�,�$�#�(*+�!"),�*"�"��)*$( #�+�(,'(*���"�� #��5*�(�(,�3 ���.�#$�#3(*����#�"�("��$�(*+��"��#�!"),�*"1�= 8�5 !�7�*��!"),�*"�3(+� *"�*" �*(��+�� 3 "��#� 3.�,���"���(�(,�3 ��.�#$�#3(*����#� *"�����")(��.)#!) "!��$��"��#�!"),�*"!1��:�(,�3 ��, !��*�!"+� *��),�!7�4)"� !�*�"�� 3 "�,�"�>��:1��.�(/ (# !3�?�$� ,�(!7�5�#87�#�!�(#��7�!.����7�(#"7�3)! �7��"�1@A��B1��$�#/�#+��$�(*�"��#0!�5�#8A��C1��.#�!�*" */�"���#�!)�"!�$#�3�(*�(#" $ � (�� *"��� /�*���.�("$�#3�(!��*�0!��5*A���1����5*��(, */��#���.+ */� *$�#3(" �*�$#�3��"��#�!�)#��!�(*,�.#�!�*" */� "�(!��*�0!��5*A��D1��)! */��(*/)(/��"#(*!�(" �*�5�#8��$�!�3��*����!��5��*�"����-.��"(" �*� !�,� */��*�0!���5*�"#(*!�(" �*A��E1����.+ */�(*�"��#�.�#!�*0!�5�#8A��F1��(���5 */�(*�"��#�.�#!�*�"����.+��*�0!��5*�5�#8A��G1��!"�(� */�(*�"��#�.�#!�*0!�5�#8A��<1��,� */�(*�"��#�.�#!�*0!�5�#8�$�#�"��3A��H1��, !"# 4)" */���. �!��$��*�0!�5�#8�$�#�)!��4+��"��#!A��I1��, !"# 4)" */���. �!��$�!�3��*����!�0!�5�#8�$�#�)!��4+��"��#!A��=1�� *"�*" �*(��+�(���!! */�(*�"��#0!�5�#8�$�#�"���.)#.�!���$�.#�!�*" */� "�(!��*�0!��5*A��J1��, !"# 4)" */��#�#��� ' */�(*!5�#!�"��(!! /*3�*"!7�;) 99�!7�"�!"!7�(!!�!!3�*"!7��"�1A��K1��, !"# 4)" */��#�#��� ' */�;)�!" �*!�$#�3�;) 99�!7�"�!"!7�(!!�!!3�*"!7��"�1��E(�)�"+�(*,�:,3 * !"#(" �*��('��"���#�!.�*! 4 � "+�$�#�3�* "�# */�!"),�*"!0�5�#8�$�#���3.� (*����5 "��"� !�.�� �+1��&(#�*"!�!�(���4����*"(�"�,�(!�!��*�(!�.#(�" �(4���"��#�.�#"�(*+�(���/�,�(�"!��$�(�(,�3 ���, !��*�!"+�4+�"�� #��� �,1�L�.�("�,�' ��(" �*!��$�"� !�.�� �+�3(+�#�!)�"� *�(,, " �*(�����*!�;)�*��!7�).�"��(*,� *��), */�!)!.�*! �*�(*,��-.)�! �*1���"),�*"�(*,M�#�.(#�*"�(..�(�!��$�, !� .� *(#+���*!�;)�*��!�#�!)�" */�$#�3�' ��(" �*��$�"� !�.�� �+��3(+�4��3(,��5 "� *�$ '��?N@�4)! *�!!�,(+!�"��"���&# *� .(��5��!��,�� ! �*�!�(���4��$ *(�1��<$�"����&# *� .(��5(!�"���!"($$�3�34�#�#�!.�*! 4���$�#�"���, !� .� *(#+���*!�;)�*���4� */�(..�(��,7�"��*��!"),�*"�(*,M�#�.(#�*"�(..�(�!�!��)�,�4��, #��"�,�5 "� *�$ '��?N@�4)! *�!!�,(+!�"��"�����).�# *"�*,�*"��#�,�! /*���5��!��,�� ! �*�!�(���4��$ *(�1�



�����������	
��	������	����
� ������������������������	�
�	������ !!"#$�%&�'()��*%+),$��("++�-.�)/,+ 0.0�)/�'(.�1' 0./'�2"/0-%%3�"/0�'(.�4!*+%$..��2"/0-%%35��647�6�849484:;4<�1.,')%/�==>5?=@�==>5=AB@�=C?5=C@�D)�,%/�)/�1'"' '.���;8E11�849484:;41<�F=CG�H�I.#�%/"+�4+.,'#%/),�J.K),.�I%+),$��1' 0./'LI"#./'�2"/0-%%3���1'"&&�2"/0-%%3�L�M#..!./'����JEIN4J<�



MEMO 

TO: Board of Education 

FROM: Dennis Ktueger, Superintendent 

SUBJECT: Determination of regular and special education open enrollment 

available spaces for the 2024-2025 school year. 

DATE: January 2, 2024 

It has been determined per sections PI 36.06(5)(a) and PI 36.04(2)(c) of the 

Wisconsin Administrative Code, administration recommends that the Board act in 

their "nonresident district" capacity and designate that there are no re�ular 

education spaces in �rades 4K, K, 1,2.3,4,5,6,7,8,9.10,11,12 for open enrollment 

applicants and no special education svaces available per pro�ram or services for 

open enrollment applicants using class size limits, student-teacher ratios, and 

enrollment projections for the purpose of open enrollment space determination as 

criteria specified in the district's open enrollment policy. 

Thank you, 

Dennis Ktueger 

Superintendent 



School District of West De Pere
Monitoring Report

Strategic Plan: 2021-26

January 2024

Vision, Mission, and Core Elements



Priority 1
Practices and Pathways
We acknowledge the diverse needs of our students by emphasizing instructional
practices that prioritize student needs, with a focus on diversified practices and
pathways to student success and wellness.

Indicators
● 1.a Develop and implement equitable instructional practices that focus on the individual

needs of our students

Actions Additional Information

● All schools have data review teams and student study teams
that regularly look at student data trends and specific
student needs based on the data.

Second year using EduClimber as our data
warehouse for student academic data
https://www.illuminateed.com/products/educlimber/

● First year of implementation of the academic portion of the
MLSS framework as drafted last year in the MLSS
(Multi-Level Systems of Support) Guidebook. Work on the
behavior portion of the guidebook will occur this year.

MLSS Guidebook

● A team of 13 individuals representing grades 4K-2 is
participating in Year 2 of the Early Literacy Academy through
CESA 6 to examine early literacy practices. This work will
position us well for the requirements of Act 20.

Flier about Early Literacy Academy

DPI website about Act 20

● Additional staff members throughout the district were trained
last June and are co-teaching to best meet the needs of our
special education students in a regular education setting.

Will continue ongoing professional development
for existing and new co-teaching teams.

● K-6 teachers began their first year of implementation of
Illustrative Math. With this new adoption, the Math Cabinets
from WW, HC, and IS are meeting together monthly to
discuss best practices, implementation processes, and
assessment practices.

Sample math cabinet agenda

● The Youth Apprenticeship program has 45 enrollees this
year in a wide range of interest areas including agriculture,
construction, health, and manufacturing.

Estimated wages that will be earned is just over
$300,000 and students are obtaining real life
experience with the possibility of life long career
options.

● Functional classrooms are established at all buildings this
year.

Currently using an alternative curriculum focused
on functional academic, adaptive, and
socio-emotional skills for 6.7% of students with
disabilities

● The Intermediate School has begun instructional rounds Staff members visit each other’s classrooms
looking for ways to improve their own instruction
and to find themes for improvement in the building.

https://www.illuminateed.com/products/educlimber/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11F5zcK42ms_e6LE8GWHnyjlX0rbWZAPD/view?usp=sharing
https://www.flipsnack.com/cesa6literacycatalogue/cesa-6-early-literacy-academy-cohort-4/full-view.html
https://dpi.wi.gov/wi-reads
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1jO5yX-kVRwhneMITtST0JAYIg71DY620LQ_5SKCr_zg/edit


● Parent conferences with school counselors continue to
happen for all freshmen and juniors. These conferences
focus on academic planning.

87% of parents of freshmen attended an in-person
conference. Junior conferences began in
December.

● The district continues to use Educator Effectiveness
Coaches as part of the teacher evaluation process. Many
of the buildings have an instructional focus for staff
Professional Practice Goals and Student Learning
Objectives as part of the EE process and coaches assist
with this.

HS coaches: Gutschow, Gutschow
MS coaches: Hansen, Karlen
IS coaches: Kohl, VanBoxel
WW coaches: O’Konski, Romagna
HC coaches: Bixby, Raschke
Sped/Curr coaches: Boyd, Devine, Hollihan Allen

● We are utilizing a new math screening process at grades
K-1 which allows for consistent screening data across both
schools, less classroom disruption, and more readily
accessible data for teachers and interventionists.

Fall screening dates: September 11 and 13

● Multiple curriculum teams have met this year. Science, English Language Arts, Health, Math,
Digital Learning

● 1.b Develop and implement physical, emotional, social, and mental
wellness practices that allow students to develop into well adjusted individuals

Actions Additional Information

● In partnership with Unity Hospice, we are continuing to
provide grief support groups at all school buildings.

The number of students who participate in small
counseling opportunities continues to increase.

● Clubs and activities are promoted for all students and new
opportunities for students based on their interests are
continually investigated.

New offerings at the MS this year: Singing Club,
Drama Club, Spanish Club, and Science Club

● The district has access to therapy dogs at many buildings. Fenton is located at the HS. (Laura Lenss-
handler.)
Maverick is located at the MS. (Laura
Karlen-handler.)
Arlo is located at HC. (Officer Manning- handler.)

● The district continues to partner with various community
organizations to provide mental health services to students

Current Community Partners include Rawhide,
Bellin, Foundations and Family Services.

● Westwood staff members are participating in a book study
about Conscious Discipline

Book study facilitated by Lau, Radtke, and
Schmitting.

● In conjunction with the Unified School District of De Pere, we
are utilizing Care Solace as a way to provide increased
mental health support for all members of the De Pere
community.

Care Solace Website
In three months time, we have over 100 different
contacts with Care Solace resulting in 33
individuals being connected with supports outside
of school.

● Freshman orientation at the High School was developed by
staff and led primarily by senior mentors to assist ninth
graders in their adjustment to the high school

Sept. 5, 2023

● Senior/freshman mentor groups at the High School meet to
discuss student progress, both social-emotionally and
academically.

Meet monthly

https://www.caresolace.org/services/k12-education


● With the help of a counselor from the High School, Phantom
Knight developed a group to help students manage their
anxiety.

Mini-lessons are also provided weekly by
Phantom Knight staff members on areas of
interest for the students.

● Restorative Practices training was offered to staff in August. 60 staff members were trained

● 1.c Create a learning culture that values the interests and passions of
students in curricular and extracurricular settings

Actions Additional Information

● A variety of events to involve the community and to recognize and
encourage student interests have been offered.

Examples include:Read-a-thon, Numbers
in November, Math Carnival, Crayon Run,
Concerts, Fuel Up to Play 60, Soup for
the Soul

● Students continue to be regularly recognized and celebrated
throughout the district in a variety of ways.

Examples include: Phantastic Phantoms,
Artists of the Week, Students of the
Month, Student Service Awards, etc.
(Attached are a few examples)

● A new CTE team was formed this year to ensure our CTE offerings
are accurately recorded and that multiple pathways are available to
meet student needs and interests.

Team: LaPierre, Gerke, Baeten, K.
Besel, DeBruin, Federman, Feldhausen,
Glinski, Luneau, Shovald, Wollin

● Students enjoy field trips that allow them to experience learning in a
non-traditional classroom setting.

Examples include: Fallen Timbers, JA
BizTown, Barlow Planetarium, Heritage
Hill, Elementary Writing Conference

● A variety of assemblies and spirit weeks have taken place
throughout the district

Examples: Homecoming, author visits

● The Academic and Career planning team met this summer to revise
and update the district’s ACP process.

Meeting was held August 1.
IS/MS ACP Plan
HS ACP Plan

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1h9k8LH1ZV9Nal0B_pU4NaSgDAxx9amuR/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-AyCU7gNH9JQ4Xldi0y0lCnogaDXHbdM/view?usp=share_link
https://www.wdpsd.com/schools/middle/academics/acp.cfm
https://www.wdpsd.com/schools/high/student-services/acp.cfm


Priority 2
Recruit, Retain, and Develop Staff
We prioritize strategies to recruit and retain all exceptional staff, as well as empower them to lead their
learning toward enhanced professional practices, organizational processes, and well-being.

Indicators
● 2.a Develop staff by providing meaningful, high-quality, and relevant

professional learning

Actions Additional Information

● Professional development for the administrative team is focusing
on the book Visible Learning: The Sequel by John Hattie.

Visible Learning: The Sequel
Resources

● Supper and Strategies professional development offerings 23-24 Supper and Strategies

● Literacy and library media/instructional technology coaching is
always available for teachers

Literacy: J. Budek, T. Kempen, H. White
Technology: J. Goodman, J. Gossen, A.
Knapp, N. Verbeten, J. Wathke

● The district supports the individual learning needs of various staff
members and departments through conference attendance

Examples include: Graham Fletcher math
training, Building Thinking Classrooms
training, CPM math training, literacy training

● Ongoing professional development is being provided for special
education staff

Examples: Using Augmentative and
Alternative Communication Devices,
Supporting Neurodiverse Students, N2Y
curricular resources, collaboration time,
Functional-Behavioral assessments and
behavioral intervention plans

● 3 year mentor program for staff members in their first years of
teaching

Program information

● Addition of mentor program for support staff Program information

● ALICE training for all new staff and ALICE refresher training for
all other staff

Provided for new staff as part of new
teacher orientation
Refreshers provided at each building in
conjunction with building SROs

● The High School hosted an AP (Advanced Placement)
conference this year. There were 55 participants from 14 school
districts who attended.

There is interest in continuing to host at
WDP in future years.

● Multiple opportunities for professional development took place
over the summer.

Examples: Nonviolent Crisis Intervention,
Restorative Practices, Illustrative Math
implementation, New Teacher Orientation,
Open Lab, SITA, Early Literacy Academy,
Co-Teaching

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sc441oF9tgXt1DkDsPK7hw8OxW2BuujJ/view?usp=sharing83b922275&language=de_DE&ref_=as_li_ss_tl
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sc441oF9tgXt1DkDsPK7hw8OxW2BuujJ/view?usp=sharing83b922275&language=de_DE&ref_=as_li_ss_tl
https://docs.google.com/document/d/18ErzeaySovVy-tLh7CrxWNFQ4KolYvDy7p_hrH5yQTA/edit
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1osTrNdqDqZl9O7-c8nR7QJ24a4S69oVM/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1cOsOeWWROnxm5vIfgJCkuee2iiQzDoa61lrZccKLqjQ/edit


● 2.b Support a workplace culture that fosters engagement and promotes
employee health, wellness, and relationships

Actions Additional Information

● Regular staff recognition (i.e. food, apparel, etc.) We regularly show appreciation for our
staff both at the district and building level
in a variety of ways. (see examples)

● Fitness opportunities across the district with multiple options Staff Fitness Opportunities- (pelotons,
cross fit, weight rooms, athletic events, etc.)

● On site and near site clinics Participation

● Culture building activities held in each building. Each building has in place a variety of
practices that promote positive culture
and relationships.
(For example: a family first approach,
mobile snack cart, trivia,
tournaments/contests, exercise, culture
and climate committee, team building
activities, fitness promotion, games, etc.)

● Part-time staff members are able to utilize our on-site clinic and
access the on-site nurse at no cost

This started in Sept. of 2023.

● Continue to offer wellness initiatives through Bellin Staff are sent weekly emails that provide
access to webinars, information, and
training regarding mental health and
wellness.

● Employee groups continue to meet regularly to share ideas for
continued improvement, dialogue, and gain further understanding
of our current state related to processes and practices.

Four meetings have taken place thus far
this year.

● Begin work to refine our reunification process in the event of a
crisis situation

Working with the Unified School District
of De Pere and community emergency
response professionals

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1UCuJ6q9l7CVlNnR18-W-wo-qp8MZgOsO/view?usp=drive_link
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1sj-gFIJrQAfgpH2UwxuJJuByNh99XJo10d8XxUEInJw/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/102xqfCEkjGd0UnKPy3r1OJHJrNWMFKEMhHw3bQ4sRNs/edit?usp=sharing


● 2.c Attract and retain talented staff members through regionally
competitive salary and benefits

Actions Additional Information

● Track: reasons staff come and/or leave Summary Document

● We have been able to fill the large majority of our positions
during our current staffing shortage in education.

We utilize resources such as Indeed,
posting to Facebook and our website, etc.

● Continued high level of health care while enhancing the
district’s dental and vision plans

○ Part-time staff members are able to utilize our on-site
clinic at no cost

Plan Summaries

This additional benefit is appreciated as per
meetings with this employee group.

● Provide opportunities for “Aspiring administrators” Association of Wisconsin School
Administrators membership and shadowing
opportunities have taken place.

● Implementation of an online substitute teacher calling system Red Rover was incepted in the Fall of 2023
and is getting positive reviews from those
who utilize it.

● Participated in the first CESA staff recruitment event along with
three other school districts.

This provided an opportunity to connect with
other districts and generate further potential
staff/substitutes.

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1CLeTrbuPcoJQJUJ8Yk0t9A44pQ49UBiIVBwX0meXuDw/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1G65uzTR7fG_RyhZ-NypGX3cji64Altt6/view?usp=sharing


Priority 3
Growth
We continue to monitor growth and educational trends to plan and communicate future needs while
maintaining and upgrading facilities and programming in a fiscally responsible manner.

Indicators
● 3.a Monitor community and enrollment growth for future planning

Actions Additional Information

● Continue to monitor current growth and make comparisons to our
most recent studies.

We are growing, however, not at the
rate suggested in the 2022 Roffers
report. As always, we also monitor
individual grade level/classroom
enrollment.

● Continue participation on the City of De Pere Comprehensive
Planning Committee, Town of Lawrence Comprehensive Planning,
and WI DOT Interstate 41 project meetings.

Link to City of De Pere plan
Link to Town of Lawrence plan Link to
WI DOT Interstate 41 project

● Communication with municipalities on vision for future development
and updates with regard to new developments being constructed.

Ongoing conversations with Town of
Lawrence representatives as well as
individuals from De Pere take place in
order to maintain awareness of
subdivisions and planning.There
continues to be a lot of current and
future planned construction taking
place.(i.e. The Bungalows)

● Constantly monitor class sizes and student needs This ensures appropriate staffing to
meet the needs of all students.

● 3.b Provide resources to meet the changing needs of students and the community

Actions Additional
Information

● Care Solace is underway Care Solace provides assistance with
access to mental health services for
students, staff, and all West De Pere
community members.

In three months time, we have over
100 different contacts with Care
Solace resulting in 25 individuals being
connected with supports outside of
school.

● Continue providing resources for children and families in need. - Hands Across De Pere, The Hanger-
a room at the High School to help
students in need, etc.

https://www.deperewi.gov/egov/apps/document/center.egov?view=item&id=3323
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Q5gyPhqmvvl0mBGlg0FpmHbRJjQssflK/view?usp=share_link
https://i41project.wisconsindot.gov/
https://i41project.wisconsindot.gov/


● Providing resources for families outside of the school day. There are a variety of events and
drives throughout the district for
families to participate in. Examples
include things like literacy nights, math
nights, digital safety nights, book fairs,
learning events, food drives, and other
engaging opportunities for students
and families. Additionally, we connect
with the community to promote
Phantom Phundamentals!

● 3.c Continue practicing fiscal responsibility

Actions Additional Information

● Continue to focus on energy savings and tracking results Tracking Data

● Operate within budget while meeting needs of students and staff Budget

● Exploring cost reduction opportunities with administrative team assess wants vs. needs, minimize
purchased services and/or provide
internally to reduce cost

● 3.d Utilize communication practices that enhance connections

Actions Additional Information

● In the process of enhancing communication through the
development of videos to highlight literacy/math thinking and
terminology

Will be shared with parents via multiple
media and linked on the web when
complete. Example

● Continue utilizing the District Newsletter, social media, School
Messenger, building/program newsletters/updates, and shared
drives for staff. Move more toward digital communication where
appropriate.

Examples include:
Facebook Page
District Newsletter

● Continue to nurture connections with organizations to provide
experiences for students (i.e. Involvement in: De Pere Chamber
of Commerce, Greater Green Bay Area Chamber of Commerce,
Optimists, Friends of Fallen Timbers, Rawhide, Achieve Brown
County Strategic Planning, local businesses, etc.)

We deliberately nurture existing
connections and continue to foster new
connections as we seek opportunities for
students.

● Continued virtual Board Meeting option and posting Board
meeting notices on the School District of West De Pere
Facebook page.

We monitor virtual participation and
continue to offer it as an option to attend
Board Meetings. Also, we not only post
the agenda on the website, but also
share the appropriate supporting
documents the day prior to a Meeting.

● Employee groups continue to meet regularly to share ideas for
continued improvement, dialogue, and gain further
understanding of our current state related to processes and
practices.

Four meetings have taken place thus far
this year.

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1CGoOCXTmDIKsNkjc167KQXj5RGrQU14Uth3_v7f3e4o/edit?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1uy0ZUBaIMev2yNDyzd2w25D2adZfIorA/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jjGXgT9dpfvKY3e-fZ_lWCPhB2Cr5Ue1/view?usp=sharing
https://www.facebook.com/SchoolDistrictofWDP/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1dSSXSJpqMcqJi-wJiDsSMrnllDlP0_8W/view?usp=drive_link


��������������	
��������	���������������������
���
�����
���������������������������� �
!���"��������#$�
�%&��%&%'��((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((��) �	����������
�	�����������*�
��	��*	+��"����������	�	��
��	���*���������� �
!���
��*�����#����%&%,���
������	
��� �������-���*	�!��������������
���
�����
����������



����������	
���
�����	
���������������������������������������������� !"�##��"�� �$��%��&�'(')��*+,-�./-001�2345678311�9+:64�23/5��;��	�	�<	�=�
���>���	�<=?�@�A	��@<	B�
C<���D��E�<F	�
�<F�?�GD�
���������
�
�A	�
��?�=<
��
�����D�F<B���H���	
F<	�<���

���C��E�
�������
�����<F����	�<
�I�=<�?�J���=<�?�K�G	������J��L<GB��M��N�O3P6113�.PQ63R4�O-66Q��;���J�??����������S�H<D���<�D�����F�?��<
�I�==�	�TG�	�=E�K�F��<=?�;����I�	�?�=���
�����D�	D��<?�	�F������?<A�������M��U0V7-�NPPQ6W7+/64-+P��H�=E�<
G�<
��=	�
��H���A������=X�Y�G
��SDD��=
���	��D��H�<��������G��?�	
���
M�H���A���<	�C��=���=���?�L�
��
����Z[;[I\�]̂�<L<�?�CA�
����>��<
���>���=�@<A��H�<FC��_��@G
�
�<
̀	�=�
�<����a�H���A��	�<�	��<���=<��	
������
���D��	
�E��G	�bcbd�Y�G=E�������		��=<�����
���Y�<��<L<�?_��eNOf�O1344�9674�g+4+70Q��H����J�B��@<��	
���������F�Z�h�i<���A�;���=��<���H����E��	D�=
�<�?<A��=�
���K�E���������ZSH\��?�D<�
F�=
M�K��L�=
��j���B=����	B���	�L�
��
����k=
���
��HG��=<�A�S�
	���<		�<=?�F<?���EE=�E��L�
��
���@<B�=E�l��<	
�A�S�
	�<=?�HG��=<�A�]����<		�	M�k
�L<	�<�j��A��=
���	
�=E�?<A��=�
����HG��=<�A�S�
	���<		���F	M�

�*6m10/5�OQ665�nQR�9Q3R6��o�?�E�<?��F<?��
���C�<=B�
	���������D��=��K�<j�=�A���<��X�<����<����E<=�p<
��=�
�<
�F<B�	��<=?�?���j��	�C�?	�
��B�?	�L���=��?��=�M�;��A��<�	��������
�?�]q�D����L	�<=?�or�	�
	����	���
	_�
�sW76Qm6R+376�./-001�9V6474��;���k=
��F�?�<
����������<?�
L��<F<p�=E��D��	�=
<
��=	�CA��t=��?<�	F�B���?<=���	M�;����D��	�=
��	�	�<��?��
������G�
G���L�
����G��	
G?�=
	�<=?���
��	�FG����<DD����<
�?M��sW76Qm6R+376�./-001�.ufv�wQ0x6/74��r
��E�<?��	��=��;\J�<����L��B�=E��=���?�=E�
����\io�J�=?	
��F���C�
	��
���GE��<�F<p�M��;��A���<j��C��=�L��B�=E������<C��<
�j��A�
�����FD��
��
��	�D��y��
M��*6m10/5�OQ665�.W0zm6W��;���{�=?��E<�
�=���<		�	�<
��K�F���B�H���B��<?�<�C�<	
��F<B�=E�	=�LF�=M�



��������	�
�������� ������������������������������ �!��"#����$%�&����"������ �������������'�(��)��*�+,%"-�$���-�.�+/,���0/ ���"��1/2# ���� ����������(�����3"#%%,�4%����$%�5�� /%����� ����������6��'����)��.�+/,����+��1/2# ��#%� ���7�� #��)/��,��3"#%%,�$#����$,�7���� �)��"#��6��8��)��9�� :%%��)� #�$���/5�,���� �)��"#�����'�';68��)�)/��,��3"#%%,�<� ��3#%:�/�� #��"%++%������ �<=�/,�����6;>?�)��9�� :%%��3 ���� ��@A ��5�2��B��




